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UM TED STATES OF AM ERICA

VS.

DAW D ESPINOSA,

SANDY BASULTO, and

ARACELIS BASILIA LOPEA

Defendants.

/

INDICTM ENT

The Orand Jury charges th'at:

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At al1 times material to tbjs Indictment:

The M edicare Proaram

The Medicare Program (Medicare) was a federally ftmded propam that provided

free or below-cost health care benefts to certain. individuals, primarily the elderly, blind, and

disabled. The benefits available under M edicare were govemed by federal statutes and regulations.

The United States Department of Health and Human Serdoes, tkough its agtncy, the Centers for

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), oversaw and administered Medicare. Individuals who

received benefits under M edicare were commonly referred to as M edicare ''benefciaries.''
1

2. M edicare programs covering different types of benefks were separated into different

progrnm ''parts.'' Part D of Medicare (the tçMedicare Part D Program'') subsidized the costs of
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prescription dmgs for M edicare beneticiaries in the United States. The M edicare Part D Program

was enacted as part of the M edicare Prescription Drug, lmprovement, and M odem ization Act of

2003 and went into effect on January 1, 2006.

3. In order to receive Part D benefits, a benefkiary enrolled in @. Medicare drug plan.

M edicare dnzg plans were operated by private companies approved by M edicare. Those companies

were oRen referred to as drug plan ''sponsors.'' A benefkiary in a M edicare drug plan could fi1l a

prescription at a pharmacy and use his or her plan to pay for some or all of the prescdption.

4. A phnrmacy could participate in the PM  D Program by entering a retail network

agpement directly with a plan or with one or more Pharmacy Benefit Managers (PBMs). A PBM

acted on behalf of one or more Medicare drug plan. Through a plan's PBM, a pharmacy couldjoin

the plan's network. W hen a Part D beneficiarypresented a prescription to a pharmacy, the pharmacy

submitted a claim either directly to the plan or to a PBM that represented the benesciary's Medicare

dnlg plan. The plan or PBM  determined whether the pharmacy was entitled to payment for each

claim and periodically paid the phannacy for outstanding claim s. The drug plan's sponsor

reimbursed the PBM  for its payments to the pharm acy.

5. A pharmacy could also submit claims to a M edicare drug plan to whose network the

phannacy did not belong. Submission of such out-of-network claim s was not common and often

resulted in smaller payments to the phsrmacy by the drug plan sponsor.

M edicare, through CM S, compensated the M edicare drug plan sponsors. M edicare

. paid the sponsors a monthly fee for each M edicare beneticiary of the sponsors' plans. Such

lied capi'tation fees. The capitation fee was adjusted periodically based on variouspayments were ca

factors, including the beneficiary's medical conditions. In addition, in som e cases where a sponsor's

2
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expenses for a beneficiary's prescription drugs exceeded that benefciary's capitation fee, M edicare

reimbursed the sponsor for a portion of those additional expenses.

Medicare and Medicare drug plan sponsors, were ''hea1th care benetk progrnmlsj,''

as deined by Title 18, United States Code, Scction 24(b).

The Defendants and Related Companv

8, Ultra Pharmacy Discount,Corp. ($%Ultra Pharmac/') was a Florida corporation

located at 14232 SW  146 Avenue, M iami, Florida, pup ortedly providing prescription dnlgs to

M edicare beneficiaries.

9. DAW D ESPINOSA, a resident of M iami-Dade County, was an owner and

corporate offker of Ultra Pharmacy,

10, t SANDY BASULTO, a resident of M iami-Dade County, was a licensed pharmacy

technician and employee of Ultra Pharmacy.

11. ARACELIS BASILIA LOPEZ, a resident of M iami-Dade County, was a licensed

phannacy technician and employee of Ultra Phannacy.

COUNT 1

CONSPIM CY TO COM M IT HEALTH CARE FM UD AND W IRE FRAUD

(18 U.S.C. : 1349)

1. The General Allegations section of this lndictment is re-alleged and incorporated by

reference as though fully set forth herein.

From in or around M arch 2013, tluough at least in or around February 2015, in

M iami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

DAVID Esm xosA,

su ov BASIJLT ,0 and

AltAcEu s BASILIA LopEz,

Case 1:18-cr-20435-DMM   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 05/25/2018   Page 3 of 13



did willfully, that is, with the intent to further the objects of the conspiracy, and knowingly combine,

conspire, confederate and agree with each other and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury,

to commit offenses against the United States, that is:

a. to knowingly and willfully execute a scheme and artifice to defraud a health care

beneft program affecting commerce, as defned in Title 18, United States Code, Section 24(b),

specifically, Medicare and Medicare drugplan sponsors, and to obtain, bymeans of materially false

and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, money and property owned by, and tmder

the custody and control otl said 11ea1th care benefit programs, in connection with the delivery of and

payment for health care benefits, items, and services in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 1347; and

b. to lcnbwingly and with the intent to defraud, devise and intend to devise a schem e

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and property by means of materially false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing the pretenses, representations, and

promises were false and fraudulent when m ade, and for the pum ose of executing the scheme and

artifce, did lm owingly transm it and cause to be kansmitted by means of wire comm unication in

interstate and foreign commerce, certain writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds, in violation

of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.

PURPOSE OF THE CONSPIRACY

It was a pup ose of the conspiracy for the defendants and their co-conspirators to

unlawfully enri' ch themselves by, among other things: (a) offcring and paying kickbacks for the

referral of fraudulent Medicare prescriptions to Ultra Pharmacy; (b) submitting and causing the

submission of false mld fraudulent claims to health care benefit programs; (c) concealing the
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submission of false and fraudulent claims to health care beneft programs, and the receipt and

transfer of fraud proceeds; and (c) diverting fraud proceeds for the personal use mzd benefit of

themselves and others, and to ftzrther the fraud.

M ANNER AND M EANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

The manner and means by which the defendants and theirco-conspirators sought to

accomplish the objects and purpose of the conspiracy included, among other titings, the following:

4. DAW D ESPINOSA, SANDY BASULTO, and M G CELIS BASILIA LOPEZ

recruited and paid kickbacks to co-conspirators in exchange for refening M edicare beneficiaries to

be used in conjunction with false and fraudulent billing of the Medicare Part D Program through

Ultra Pharmacy

DAVID ESPINOSA, SANDY BASIJLTO, ARACELIS BASILIA LOPEZ and

their co-conspirators submitted and caused the submission of claims, via interstate wire

commtmications, that falsely and fraudulently represented that prescription drugs were medically

necessary, prescribed by a doctor, and had been provided to the M edicare beneficiaries by Ulka

Pharmacy.

As a result of such false and fraudulent claim s,' M edicare prescription drug plan

sponsors, tluough their PBMS, made overpam ents funded by the M edicare PM  D Propnm to the

coporate bnnk account of Ultra Pharmacy, in the amount of at least approximately $2,400,000.

DAW D ESPINOSA, SANDY BASULTO, ARACELIS BASILIA LOPEZ and

their co-conspirators used the proceeds from the false and fraudulent M edicare Part D claim s for

their own use and the use of others, and to further the fraud.

A1l in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349.
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COUNTS 2-9
IIEALTH CARE FM UD

(18 U.S.C. 5 1347)

The General Allegations section of this Indictment is re-alloged and incorporated by

refecence as though fully set forth hrrein.

2. From in or around M arch 2013,and continuing through at least in or around

February 2015, in M iam i-Dade County, in the Southem District of Florida, and elsewhere, the

defendants,

DAVID Esm xosA,
su ov BASULT ,0 and

Alu cEtzls BASILIA LopEz,

in connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefts, items, and services, did

knowingly and willfully execute, and attempt to execute, a scheme and artifke to defraud a health

care benetkprogram affecting commerce, as defined byTitle 18, United States Code, Section 24(b),
:

that is, M edicare and M edicare dnlg plan sponsors, and to obtain, by m eans of materially false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, m oney ând property owned by,.and under the

custody and control of, said health care benefit programs.

Purpose of the Schem e and Artifce

3. It was a purpose of the scheme and artifice for the defendants and their accomplices

to llnlawfully enrich theinselves by, among other things: (a) offering and paying kickbacks for the

referral of fraudulent Medicare prescriptions to Ultra Pharmacy; (b) submitting and causing the

submission of false and fraudùlent claims to health care benefit prorams; (c) concealing the

submission of false and fraudulent claims to health care benefit program s, and the receipt and

transfer of fraud proceeds; and (d) diverting fraud proceeds for the personal use and benefit of
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themselves and others, and to further the fraud.

The Scheme and Artifice-

''I'he allegations contained in paragraphs 4 through 7 of the M nnner and M eans4
.

section of Count 1 of this Jndictm ent are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully

set foMh herein as a descdption of the schemc and artifice.

Acts in Execution or Attempted Execution of the Schem e and Artm ce

5. On or about the dates set forth as to each count below, in M iami-Dade and Broward

County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

DAVID Esm xosA,
sAxov BASULT ,0 and

ItAcEtzls BASILIA LOPEZ,A

in connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefts, items, and services, did

u owingly and willfully execute, and attempt to execute, the above-described scheme and artifice

to defraud a health care beneft program affecting commerce, as defmed by Title 18, United States

Code, Section 24(b), that is, Medicare and Medicarc dnlg plan sponsors, and to obtain, by means

of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, money and property

owned by, and under the custody and control of, said health care benefit m ograms, in that tht

defendants submitted and caused the submission of false and fraudulent claims seeking the

identifed dollar am ounts and representing that Ultra Pharmacy provided pharmaceutical items and

services to Medicare benefciaries pursuant to a valid physician's orders and prescliptions:

7
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Approxim ate wa ujcare M ttucare clalm Item claim ed;c
nunt Date of 

senegciary Number Approx. Amount :
service cjajmed

10/17/2013 A4.Z. 42122106163044154058 Btldesonide; $1264
7t740067961982404071

11/25/2013 ACZ. 79855128163044154000 Seroquel XR;
17067444321633404071 $607

06/06/2014 S4.Z. 30390507910905295007 Seroquel XR;

18429052683766404071 $1326

5 1/26/2015 R.S. 150265140519024998 Seroquel XR; $1201

1/26/2015 R.S. 150265140231010998 Abilify; $1282

1/26/2015 R.S. 150265139296007999 Budesonide; $11 15

2/10/2015 M .H. 150415105390011998 Spidva; $303

9 02/10/2015 M .H. 150415105127024998 Budesonide; $743

In violation of Titl: 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 2.

8
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FORFEITURE

(18 U.S.C. 5 982)

The allegations contained in tMs Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by

reference as though fully set forth herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States

of certain property in which the defendants DAW D ESPINOSA, SANDY BASULTO, and

AQACELIS BASILIA LOPEZ have an interest.

2. Upon conviction of any violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 or

1349, as alleged in Cotmts 1 through 9 of the Indictment, the defendant so convicted shall forfeit to

the United States al1 of his or her right, title and interest in any property, real or personal, that

constimtes or is derived, directly or indirectly, from gross proceeds traceable to the comm ission of

hsuch violations, pursuant to Title 18, Unitcd States Code, Section 982(a)(7).

M lpursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(7); and the procedures set forth

at Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, as made applicable tbrough Title 18, United States

Code, Section 982(b)(1).

! Q  - V u
BENJAM N  .G GREENBERG
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

JoxM w esfj AsslsiAx so sTvss AcvoRxsv
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